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. IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA
WESTBRN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff, . : '
Civil Action Number 1:05-cv-30

| . ' CONSENT ORDER
The MUNICIPAL HOUSING AGENCY of o

COUNCIL BLUFFS; IOWA; MARK SCHULTZ;

" and DEE WENTZEL,

Defendants.

e M st st s s Nt el Nt ) N e

I. INTRODUCTION

1. The United States filed .a..compla.int on September | 2005, against The Municihal '
Housmg Agency of Council Bluﬁ's Towa (“the Housmg Agency” or ‘MHA ’), Mark
Schultz (“Schultz”), and Dee Wentzel (“Wentzel”) to enforce the prov1310ns of the Fair
.Housing Act (“the Act’f), as amended by the Fair Housmg Amendments Act of 1988, 42 .

USC §§'3_601 et.seq. Defendants qwn'ahd operate: Regal Towers, a 210-unit public
hdus;'ng complex for elderly and 'disahlc;,d persons located at 505 South 6th Street in
Councii-Biui&'s, Iowa. In its Complaint, the United States alleges that the Defendants
have ehgagéd ina pattem or priactice of discrimination by: '

- 8. Discriminating in the rental of; or htherwise making uhavailable or denying,

dwellings to renters because of handicap', in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(1);_

! Throughout this'Comnsent Order, the term “hand.tcap” is used mterchangeably with
“d.tsablhty,” as deﬁned in42U.8S. C § 3602(h).
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and
.bj Discrimina’dng against persons in the terms, conditions or privileges of rental of a
dwelling, or in the provision of services or fac'ilities m comection witha
- dwelling, beé:ause of handicap, in violation of 42 ﬁ.S.C. § 3604(H(2).
2. ’ The Defendants are: |
a.  The Mumc1pa.1 HousmgAgency of Councﬂ Bluﬂ‘s Iowa, a pubhc housmg
authonty w1th its principal place of busmess located at 505 South 6th’ Street in . |
. Cou.nc11 Bluffs, Tows;
b. Mark-Schultz, who was at t1mes relevant to the events in this case tﬁe Exec.:utive
: | T Director of the Housiné Agency. .befendant S;chult'z' retired .on Sep;tembe; 30, .
2005, and.is.ﬁq 101.1ger empioy'ed in a‘housixig~ provider-related caéacity. fi‘o‘the .
" extent that during the term of this éonsent Order, Defér;dant, Schultz does not
reenter the wo.rkforce in Q houginé pmviderereléted, capacity, the noﬁ-mopehxy )
proviéions of this Consént Or_der do' not apply to him; and
c. . Des Wentzel, wh;> was st times relevant to the events in this cés_e e;r;ployed by the
Housmg Agency as a housing specialist. ' | .
| 3. . The United States and the Defendeants (collectively “the Parties”) desxre to av01d costly -
_ and protracted' litigation, and agree that the claims against the Defendants should be'
resolved without further proceedings or an ev1dent1ary heanng Tht;,re‘fore,' as indicated

* by the signatures below, the Parties agree to tﬁq entry of this Consent Order. This

Consent Order represents full resolution of the United States’ claims that the Defendants

. discriminated against persons with disabilities; as alleged in the United S_tétes’-

| [ : ’ - , Page 2 of 16
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Complaint.
 THEREFOKE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:
-b II. JURISDICTION AND SCOPE ’
4. The Court has subject matter juﬁsdiction over the claims in the civil action oursuent to
28U.S.C. §§ 1331 e.nd 1345, and42 US.C. §§ 3612(0) and 3614(&.)
5. ' The provmons of this Consent Order apply to aJl Defendants, then' employees, ofﬁclals :
| . successors, fﬁcers, a.nd agents ' |

III. GENERAL INJUNCTION

6 .. Defendauts, their agents, employees, and all those acting in concert or participation with
them are hereby en_]omed from: ‘
a stcnmmatmg inthe rerital of, or otherw1se makmg xmavaﬂable or denymg,

' wellmgs to renters because of handlcap, in ylolatlon of42U.8.C. § 3604(1)(1);

and
o b. Discﬁmihaﬁ;ig against persons in the terms, conditions or orivileées' of rental of ;
| dwel]i_ng, or in the provision of services or fac.il'ities in commection W1th a
" dwelling, because of handicap, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(1)(2')_.. |
| ' IV. AFFIRMATIVERELIEF
1. . Apphcatlon and Tenancy Procedures: The Defendants shall comply with the procedures
in Paragraphs g through 11 with respect to the rental of dwellmgs at Regal Towers to’ '
" ensure compliance with the Fair Housing Act and to ensure that these dwelhngs are ms,de

available for rent on an equal basis ancI on the same terms and conditions for all persons.

Specifically, the Defendants will coroply with the HUD regulations implementing the

‘Page3 of 16
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Act’s provisions that prohibit, with limited exceptit)ns, property owners fz;om inquiring
whether an applicant for a dwelling has a handicap. 24 CFR. § 100.202(c) and (d).
" Nothing in this Order prohibits Defendants from denying applications based.on
uniformly-applied neutral criteria unrelated 1o a person’s disability,
8. Nondiscrimination Policy: Within thirty (30) days of the eniry of this Order, the
- Defendants shall creats and subrmt for approval to the Umted Stvates2 a written
Nondlscnmmauon Pohcy Thc Nond.xscnmmatlon Policy shall mclude a statement
sﬁrmtng that Defendants Wlu not dwmm_mate on the basis of race, color, rghgwq, sex; '
handicap, familiel status, or national origin. Within seven (7) days of the United States’
approval of the Ndndisgrim.ination Policy, the Defendants shall implement such |
Noﬁd'.iscrimina'tlion Policy. During the term of this Order, if Defendants wish to.modjfy :.
or alter the Nond.isgn'minatic;ﬁ Polic,ty, they shall submn: the proposed ch;.qgeé ta counsel :
. for the United States for review and approval o ' o
9. . LJ g and Nondlgm ory &gcedges Within thlrty (30§ days of the entry of this
Order, the Defendants sha.ll create and subnut for approval to the United States wntten
' U;nfonp and Nond.tscnmmatory Procedires for recemng, handling, pmcessmg, rejecting. .'
" and approving rental inquiries and applications made in pet'son, by télephou‘e, by mail, or |
by other means, 'W1th1n seven (7) days of the Unrted States’ approval of the Uniform and

Nond:scnmmaxory Procedures, the Defendants shall 1mplement such wntten Umform and

-2 For purposes of this Order, all submlsmons to the United States or its counsel
should be submitted to: Chief, Housing and Civil Enforcement Section, Civil Rights Division, -
United States Department of Justice, 950 Pennsylvama Avenue, N.W. - G Street, Washmgton, ‘
- DC 20530. Attn. DJ 175-28-28.

) Page 4of16
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12,

10.

L1

Nondiscriminatory Procedures. During the term of this-Order, if Defendants Wrsh to
mod:fy or alter the Umform and Nondrscnmmatory Procedures, they shall submrt the
proposed changes to counsel for the United States. for review end approval.

Rental Apphgatrgn The Defendants sha]l write leglbly on each rental application filled. .'

out by a prospecuve tenant the month, day, year, and time that the Defendants recetved

the appllcanom The Defendants shall process the apphcatons in the order in wh:lch they

are rece1ved To the extent the Defendants reject any appheal:ron for housing, the

Defcndants shall provrde e1ther on the apphcauon or on an attachment to the apphcanon

a written explanat_ron why, the apphcant was determmed mehg1b1e for tenancy, including

all reasons therefor and any supporhng docutnentation, and the name of the ‘eniployee

" ‘who made the decision. Within seven (7) days of the deciston to reject an applicant, the

Defendants shall notify such applicant.of the rejection and the reason for the denial,

uo;gra:tion Provided to Prospective Anp_h:m: The Defendants' shall permit all persons.

_ Who mqu1re about renting a dwe].l.mg umt the opportumty to complete a written rental

apphcauon. The Defendants shaIl advrse all persons who i mqture about rentmg a

] dwelhng that they may ﬁ]l out an apphcatlon and, if they quahfy be put ona waiting list.

The Defendants shall m.form all persons who inquire about renting umts that they w111 be

treated equa.lly

V. EDUCA’I‘IONAL PROGRAM
W1thm th1rty 30) days of the entry of this Order, Defendant Wentzel, all agents or -
employees 6f the Defendant MEA who have responsibility for showmg, renting, or

managing dwellings at the MFA, and each agent or employee who supervises such

. Page50f16
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activities, shall attend and complete a fair housing training program, approved by the

United States, at the Defendants’ expense. The training shall be conducted by a qualified

. a

third party, unconnected to Defendants or their employees or officers, agents, or counsel,
and approved by the United States. .
13.  The training shall include the following:

. 'Informing eaoh md1v1dua1 of his or her duhes and obhgations under this Order as

well as under the Fair Housmg Act with an emphasis on discrnmnation based on
disability;
Furnishing to each individual & copy of this Order and the Defendants’

Nondisc:imination Poliey and Uniform and NOndiscriminatory Procedures, above;

Conducting a.qtie’stion and answer session for purposes of reviewing_and.

conﬁrmmg that all trainees understand items a and b above, and

' Secunng a signed cerh.ﬁcanon inthe form of the statement attached hereto as-

Appendix A, from each individual indicating that he or she attended the training _

and has reeeived, read, and understood this Order and the Defendants’

Nondiscnmmatlon Policy and Uniform and Nondiscnnnnatory Procedln'es, above.

14, Duringthe penod in which tlus Order j s in eﬂ‘ect, W1th1n tbn1:y (30) days of commencmg '

an employment or agency relanonship, all new a.gents or employees of Defendant MI-IA

‘ who have responS1b111ty for showmg rentmg, or managmg dwellings at the MHA, and all

’ . _ o .new agents or employees who supemse such activities, shall be given a c0py of the

© Written Nondlscnmmatlon Policy and Umform and Nondisonmmatory Procedures and of

" this Consent Order, and shall be requ:red to sign the statement appearing at Appendix A.

Page 6 of 16
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i ’ ' VL I;IOT]FICATION TO TENANTS AND PUBLtC
{ !' 15,  The Defendants shall: . . |
[ 3 | a.  Provide written noﬁce summanzmg the Nendiscﬁmmeﬁon Policy and Uniform
and Nondiscriminatory Ptocedures or
1."  each current tenant, W1thm thirty ('3.0) days of the entry of this Order; and .
2. . each nenv tenant, within five (5) days of the commencement of his ot het )
. temcy | :
“This nonce shall be submltted to the Justice Department for approval before
d15tr1but10n, ' ' \
b. Post and prommently dlsplay a fu]l sxze HUD fan' housmg poster, HUD Form
928.1,ina consplcuous locatlon in or near.the rental ofﬁce at Regal Towers
within thirty (30) days of the date of this Order; |
c. Include the phrase “Equal Housirig Oppotttmlty” er the fair housmg logo, as
pubhshed in HUD Form 928 I,in all rmtal advertlsmg mclud.mg b111boards

telephone directory llstmgs, radio, television, or mternet, and

d. Include the followmg written statement on all of Defendants’ Rental Apphcauons,

Leases, and Umform and Nondxscnmmatory Procedures:

We are an equal opportunity housing prov1der We do not discriminate on the
bas1s of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national origin.

V]I RECORD KEEPING . _
16. - Th.roughout the duratlon of this Order, Defendants shall preserve and mamtam all records

that are the source of, conta.m, or relats to any information pertinent to Defendants’

-Page'70f16.. .
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17.

18.°

a.

b.

 obligations under this Order, including, but not limited to, the following

Rental Applications;’

. Leases;

Nondiscrimination policies;
Nondiscﬁminaﬁon'procedures ;
Tenant rules and regulaﬁoné‘ and -

Any other information related to any inquiries regardmg the avaalabﬂrty of ay

. dwelhng umts at Regal Towers and the persons who made These mqurnee

VIIL REPORT]NG REQU]REMENTS

Within mnety (90) days of the- entry of this Order, the Defenda.nts shall submrt the

followmg records to.counsel for the Umted States

a.

"Copies of all written venﬁca.tlons of the training conducted pursuant to the

' requrrements set forth in Section \A

A photograph showing the Fair Housmg Poster as is being displayed in the rental - -

‘ _ office at Regal Towers as required by the terms mdlcated in Section VI; D
" Representative copies of all of the documents required in ngraphs 7 through
.13, as well as a.ny other materials prepared pursuant to the reqmrements of the

" terms mdlcated above;

Copres of any existing tenant rules and regulahons, and
Wntten venﬁcatron that the Notlce t0 Tena.nts has been dlslnbuted as reqhired by

the terms indicated in Section VI

Begmmng erght (8) months after the entry of this Order, and every erght €))] months

Page8of16
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thereafter for the duration of this Order, the Defendants shall deliver to counsel for the
United States a report covering the precedmg eight (8) months and containing the

following information:

a.  To the extent that these documents have not heen provided previously, copies of
all written verifications of the training conducted pursuant to'_the requirements
indicated above; and ‘ |

. b. Copres of adverhsmg used by Defendants in the precedmg six months
The last report will be due to the United States one (1) month prior to the end of the term
of th:s Order. . _ '
"9, Dunng the term of this Order, the Defendants will notl.fy counsel for the United States in

writing wrth.m fourteen ( 14) days of receipt of any wntten complaint a.gamst them or any

“of therr agents or employees made by any resrdent of or apphcant to Regal Towers "
regard.mg dtscnmmatton in’ housrng based on drsabrhty A copy of the complmnt will be
prov1ded wrth the nohﬁcahon, which will mclude the full details of the complamt,
including the complainant's name, address, end telephone number (u.nless the complaint is .

" made anonymously). Alk informaﬁon conceming the actual or attempted resolution of
any such cotnplaint_ will be pmﬁded to counsel for the United States within fonrteen (14)
days of its resolution. ‘ |
. ‘ . IX. Itﬂ'SPECTIONS .
20.  During the term of this Order, tepresentaﬁves of the United States shall be pezmitted

upon providing reasonable notice to the Defendants to mspect and copy at reasonable

t1mes any and all records related to the rental of dwelhngs at Regal Towers, or related to -

Page 90f16 =
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21,

Defendants’ obligations under this Order, .

X; COMPENSATION FOR IDENTIFIED AGGRIEVED ?ERSONS
Within ten (10) days of the entry of this Consent Order, Defendants will pay fo the
individuals listed below the amounts specified for a total lump sum 'Pay.ment of thirty one
thousand seven hun_dre& dollers ($31,700). This sum will resolve all claims these

individuals may have for alleg&l damages, costs and a.‘cttome.}.r fees that may have been

| occasipne& by the events that led to this action. ‘This amount will be paid by check, made
.payable to each person in the amounts specified. below, ahd delivered to counsel for the
| Umted States. Upon or before recelpt of said check, each md1v1dua1 will execute a .
| .re],ease of liability in fortn similar o that attached s Appendlx B, and same will be -

. dehvered to counsel for the United States. When counsel for the Umted States has

recelved both the check from Defendants and the release from the mdmdual counsel for

the United States vill deliver the release to counsel for Defendants gnd the check to the

" individual,
Pamela Hebert  $8,000
Joshua Collins - $8,000

Jhenny Claybrook: - $5,500 -
MalissaFeilen,  $1,840
 Annette Lamew - $1,840
' AtonKoppold $1,840

Jimmy Anderson $1,840

Page 10 of 16
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22.

23.

‘24,

David Birnley $1,840
Sandy Fra.nke ; A $1,600 '
These are all the tndividua]s who are to he eompen,eated tmder th‘e terms of this Order.
XI. COMPENSATION FOR FAIR HOUSING ORGANIZATION
Within ten (10) days of the entry of th1s Consent Order, Defendants will pay to the Famﬂy

Housing Advisory Services, Inc, ("FHAS'.') the total lamp sum of three thousand three

. bundred dollars ($3,300). This sum will fesolve all claims the FHAS may have for

~ alleged damages,.eosts and attorney fees that may have been occasioned by the events that' '

led to this action. This amount will be paid by check, made payable to FHAS, and
delivered to counsel for the United States. Upon or before receipt of said check, the

Director of FHAS will.execute a release of hablhty in form smnlar to t.ha.t attached as

' Appende B, and same will be dehvered to cmmsel for the Umted States When counsel

for the United States has reeewed both the check from Defendants a:_nd the release ﬁ'om '

_ FHAS, counsel for the United States will deliver the release to counse] for Defendants

and the check to FHAS. '

X0 QIVILPENALTY .

Defendants shall pay a civil penalty to the United States of five theueaxid dollars ($5,000).

Tlns ctv11 penalty i is pmd pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614(d)(1) (C). Said sum shall be pmd

within thlrty (30) days of the da:te of entry of thls Order by submlttmg a check to counsel

for the United States made payable to the Umted States of Amenca. ' . .
XI]I DURATION OF ORDER

This Consent Order shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the date of the entry of

* Page 11 of 16
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28,

Order in the interests of justice.

26.

27.

this Order. However, in the event that there is a material and substantial failure by any

‘Defendant to satisfy the terms or provisions of the Consent Order, the United States may

file a motion requestmg that the term of the Consent Order be extended
The Cou.rt shall retain jurisdiction for the duration of this Cénsent Order to enforce the
terms of the Order. The United States may move the, Court to extend the duration of the

L

Thie Parties shall employ their best eft’orts to resolve-any differences that arise in the

. 1mplementatron or mter‘pretatron of thrs Consent Order. In the €vent that such efforts farl

either party, after meetmg and conferrmg with the other party, may bnng the matter to the

Comt’s &ttentlon for resolution: In the event of a farlure by Defendants to performina

. timely manner any act reqmred by this Order or otherwme to act in conformance with any

provrsron thereof, the Umted States may move thrs Cou:rt to impose any remedy
authorized by law or eqmty, including, but not limited to, an order reqmnng performance
or deem.mg such act to have been performed, and an award of any damages, costs, and |
reasonable attorney’s fees that may hzve been occasioned by the Défendants’ v101et10n or
fatlure to perforrn ’ |

}ﬂV TIME FOR PERFORMANCE

Any trme limits for performance imposed by this Consent Order may be extended by the

mutual written agreement of the Parties.

XV. COSTS OF LITIGATION

Each party to this Order shall bear its own costs and attorney’s fees associated with this .

Jitigation.

Page 12 of 16
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Respectfully submitted on thistf%ay of October 2007.

William R, Hughes, Jr.
. Robert M. Livingston
Stuart, Tinley, Peters, Thorn,
'Hughes, Favst & Madsen
310 West Kanesville Boulevard, 2d floor
Post Office Box 398 .
Council Bluffs, Jowa 51503
712-322-4033 -
712-322-6243 fax

" hughes, williati@starttinley.com

For Defendants The Munimpal Housmg
-Agency of Council Bluffs, Iowa, Mark
Schultz; and Dee Wentzel *

Steven H. Rosenbaum, Chief
Keisha Dawn Bell, Deputy Chief
Marta Campos, Atiorney

U.S. Department of Justice

Civil Rights Division

Housipg and Civil Enforccmmt

~ Section - G Street
950 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. :

Washington, D.C. 20530
(202) 5144733 -
(202) 514-1116 fax

carmn oj.gov -

ManremMchm %w} .

'Assistant United States Attorney . -

U. S. Courthouse Axnex, 2nd Floor
110 E. Court Avenue

. Des Moines, Towa 50309-2044
- (515) 323-2845" -

(515) 284-6281 fax
' cgui doj.gov

For Plaintiff United States of America
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ITIS SO ORDERED:

Qa)(_y%

Honorable Charles R. Wolle
United States District Judge

Dated: /8 7% . ’%50@7
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- APPEN]')D(A

United States v. Municipal Housin f Council Blnffs Iowa et al,
: Civil Action No. 1 05-cv-30

: ' . - Certification of Fair Housing Training Attendance
' : : . And Acknowledgment of Receipt of Consent Order

1 certify that I attended fair housing trajning on____ ' . L attended the

' full trammg course provided on that date.

T also certify th5t I have receivc;,d a copy of the Consent Order entered by the federal .
district court in United States of Ameg'gg’_ x,. The Mm'g.ipﬂ Housing Agency of Council Bluffs ', ‘
Iowa, et al., Civil Action Nuz;nber 1:05-cv-30 (S.D. Iriawa). _This Consent Order was explained to .
mé at the training and all of my qﬁes_tfons Were. answered cﬁncpr.nil;g it. Ihave read and
understood the Consent Order. .

Exscuted this___-day of 2007

Trainee’s Signature

Trainee’s Name (printed)

Trainee’s Job Title

I certify that to the best of my knowledge, the information presented above is true.

Treiner’s Signatﬁre _

Trainer’s Na.me (printed)
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APPENDIX B
Relegse of Claims

In consideration for the parties’ agreement to the terms of the Consent Order entered in .

. United States of America v. The Municipal Housing Agericy of Council Bluffs, Towa, et al, Civil

"+ Action Number 1:05-cv-30 (S.D. Iowa), and the Defendants’ payment to me [oz fo Family

Housjng Adw./isory Services, Inc.) } dollars [$__],'I hereby release and' for_ever
‘discharge all cleims related to the facts at issue ini the litigation referenced above, 1 ﬁdemtand .
the.payment ﬁzade to me by Defendants does not constitute an admi;sion of liability on their part.

] fully acknowledge a‘ild agree that this release of Défenda.nts shall be binding on my |
ﬂéirs, representatives, .executors, administrafors, successors and assigns. Thereby acknowledge
that I hiave read and understand ﬂllS i‘e_:leas.e and l;gve'egcecutéd it w'/c;hmtérily and with foll .
knowiedge of its leéﬂ conseqﬁences: I also ﬁélmox.avledgé that I i:avé had the opportunity to
review the tern;g GF this Release with an a&grﬁey of my choosing, and fo the eictent that I have
not obtained that legal ;dvice, I"voiuntarily.waive the .right to do so. |

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this day of 2007

[Releasor’s Name]
[Address]
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